Minutes of the Workshop Meeting of January 12, 2012

Page 3

UNAPPROVED

CITY OF BLAINE

ANOKA COUNTY, MINNESOTA

WORKSHOP

CITY COUNCIL MEETING NO. 12-03
Thursday, January 12, 2012
6:30 P.M.

Cloverleaf Farm Room

10801 Town Square Drive

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Ryan at 6:30 p.m.

PRESENT:  Councilmembers Bourke, Clark (arrived at 6:43 p.m.), Hovland, Kolb, Swanson, and Mayor Ryan 
ABSENT:  Councilmember Herbst
Quorum Present.

ALSO PRESENT:  Clark Arneson, City Manager; Tom Sweeney, City Attorney (entered the meeting at 7:04 p.m.); Bryan Schafer, Community Development Director; Bob Therres, Public Services Manager; Joe Huss, Finance Director; Ward Brown, Budget/Fiscal Analyst, Chris Olson, Safety Service Manager/Police Chief; Jim Hafner, Storm Water Manager; Mike Ulrich, Public Works Director; Jim Kappelhoff, Park and Recreation Director; Nate Monahan, Park & Recreation Department; Roark Haver, Communications Technician; Jane Cross, City Clerk; and Recording Secretary Linda Dahlquist.   
Chain of Lakes Church (The Lakes Development) 

Community Development Director Schafer stated the Chain of Lakes Church is looking to build a new church.  Meridian Bank owns a large outlot, at the far northwest corner of The Lakes that was planned and approved for Rotund to build a variety of townhomes.  Meridian and the Chain of Lakes Church have reached an agreement for the church to purchase approximately 9 acres (the western portion of what Rotund owned).  The church would like to apply for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) and re-plat the outlot.  The CUP would provide the zoning approval to build a facility.  It is not clear when the church would build.  Upon approval the church would purchase the property from Meridian.  Mr. Shafer stated the traffic generation for a church is compact to Sunday’s, holidays and special events.  The church would like right in and right out access to/from Main Street.  He stated access from Main Street needs approval from Anoka County.  The church would lower the berm along Main Street in order to be seen from Main Street.  The earth from the original berm will be used on the east and south sides of the property.  He stated Ward Sessing is here to answer questions on behalf of the Chain of Lakes Church.
Councilmember Swanson asked about the Main Street access and how people would be able to drive west on Main Street.  Community Development Director Schafer responded they would use Edison Street and go south or take Edison Street to Harpers Street and up to Main Street.  He stated the traffic from the townhomes would be the same as the church but concentrated on some days.
Councilmember Hovland stated people U-turning on Main Street may be a problem especially with the development down the road.  He would rather see full access at Main Street and not have right in and right out.  Community Development Director Schafer stated the people could use Edison Street and Harpers Street and go to the light.  He stated the people could use the internal network like the residents would use.    

Councilmember Bourke stated the residents may be opposed to having a church in the neighborhood.  He asked if a neighborhood meeting would be planned.  Community Development Director Schafer stated the church is willing to have a neighborhood meeting to inform the residents of the plans.

Councilmember Kolb asked if the church plans to have a school on the site.  Mr. Sessing responded a school is not currently planned for the church.  Councilmember Kolb asked how many services are planned.  Mr. Sessing responded two to three services, one Saturday and two Sunday.  Councilmember Kolb stated churches are good neighbors and maintain their properties.  

Councilmember Kolb asked about the development and the location of the townhomes.  Community Development Director Schafer responded on the south side of the property there are townhomes, but on the east side there are six to seven acres that are open.  Councilmember Kolb stated the church is a good fit for the development.
Councilmember Bourke asked about sewer and water hookups.  Community Development Director Schafer responded sewer capacity was an issue for the proposed townhouses, but the church would be less of an issue for sewer.

Mayor Ryan stated a church at this location would be good fit.
Community Development Director Schafer stated the church would like to purchase the land now, but does not plan to build immediately.  Mr. Sessing responded the Prespitary buys the land in advance and the church decides when to build.  

Councilmember Kolb stated access on Main Street is important and the berms are good.  She stated the church would be a good fit.

Councilmember Swanson stated it makes sense to move forward with the church.

Councilmember Hovland stated the church is a good fit for the neighborhood.  He would like to know from Anoka County about the access for Main Street.  Community Development Director Schafer responded the traffic flow is limited to right in and right out because there is no median on Main Street.  Councilmember Hovland asked if right in and right out is a standing policy for all new developments along Main Street.  Community Development Director Schafer responded full access is allowed in some areas along Main Street, but not at this location.
Mayor Ryan stated you have to pick the right space to build the church.  Community Development Director Schafer stated he will work with the church.  He stated further information from Anoka County is needed before a neighborhood meeting is scheduled.

2011 Lakeside Commons Park Beach Operations Summary and Comparison 

Park and Recreation Director Kappelhoff stated the beach operations at Lakeside Commons Park has completed its second year of operation.  City staff has assembled financial, attendance, rental and parking data for the Council’s review.  He stated the staff had also conducted a noise monitoring study which showed noise levels below the L10 and L50 of the State daytime noise level standards.  Mr. Kappelhoff stated staff is requesting direction on parking options for 2012.
Mayor Ryan commented Lino Lakes’ residents like Blaine’s beach.  Park and Recreation Director Kappelhoff stated the parking permits and passes worked well.  

Mayor Ryan stated there was an issue with curbing in the driveway and suggested taking out the curbing for easier access.  He suggested going with one way in and one way out for the parking lot.  Mayor Ryan stated the parking lot was about ¾ to full all the time.  Park and Recreation Director Kappelhoff responded there were a lot of large picnics and the parking lot fills up.  
Councilmember Kolb asked if there was a limit to how many cars for the park.  Park and Recreation Director responded the parking lot holds 150 cars.
Councilmember Bourke asked if there was parking on the street.  Park and Recreation Director responded yes there was parking on the streets.  He stated it was not an issue with the residents.

Councilmember Bourke stated he would like to wait one more year to decide on extra parking.  

Mayor Ryan stated the City has not talked to the property owner or the developer about their plans for the land.

Councilmember Clark asked about the size of the temporary parking.  Public Services Manager Therres responded the current parking is one acre.  He stated the extra parking would give the City 1½ acres for parking.  Councilmember Clark stated he agreed with Councilmember Bourke on waiting to see what the developer does.  

Mayor Ryan asked if there is room for a second shelter.  Park and Recreation Director Kappelhoff responded a small shelter could be built to the east.
Councilmember Clark stated if the developer paved the lot, would the City be able to charge for parking.  Park and Recreation Director Kappelhoff responded if the commercial area is developed, the City would share the lot and probably could not charge.  

Council consensus was to wait to find out what the developer plans for the lot.  The City has a meeting scheduled with the developer for next week.

Lexington Park Athletic Facility 
Community Development Director Schafer stated in August 2011 City staff presented a conceptual athletic use park plan for the 30 acre portion of the Finn Farm owned by Paxmar Development.  Council’s consensus was to move forward with Paxmar.  Paxmar suggested 38 acres of the Finn Farm located south along Lexington Avenue and next to the Woodland Development would be a better fit for a park.  The larger parcel would allow the City to build a combination athletic facility and neighborhood park that would include: picnic shelter, playground, trails, full basketball court, tennis courts, lighted baseball field, lighted youth and adult softball fields, five multi-use fields (two lighted), and parking.  Community Development Director Schafer met with Woodland to determine if the planned townhomes that would neighbor the park would work.  
Councilmember Clark asked if the park dedication fee rate is locked into a fixed rate.  Community Development Director Schafer responded the developer has asked for the fee to be frozen at 2012 rates.  
Community Development Director Schafer stated the park would generate less traffic; although heavy traffic pattern Monday –Thursday seasonally and weekends low use, and winter would be quiet.  He stated a right in and right out access on to Lexington Avenue so people would not have to drive through the residential neighborhood.

Councilmember Clark asked if access is available from the north and south of the property.  Community Development Director Schafer responded no, access on the west and east only.

Councilmember Clark asked why access from the south is not planned.  Community Development Director Schafer responded there would be no need or advantage to have access from the south.  He stated it would also change where the parking would be situated.
Park and Recreation Director Kappelhoff stated the proposed park fits into the Woodland neighborhood and has nice amenities: Lacrosse, football, baseball and soccer.  He stated all parking is located in the center of the park in order for the lighting to be away from the homes.  He stated there would be a total of 300 parking stalls.   Park and Recreation Director Kappelhoff commented the wetland area will need mitigation.  

Councilmember Swanson stated tennis courts in the first district are not used.  Park and Recreation Director Kappelhoff responded it depended on the park.
Councilmember Hovland asked if the tennis courts would be lighted.  Park and Recreation Director Kappelhoff responded yes.  Councilmember Kolb stated people use lighted tennis courts.

Councilmember Clark asked if there is room for an additional little league field.  Park and Recreation Director Kappelhoff responded an additional little league field would decrease the parking.  Councilmember Clark stated the location of the shelter and playground would be an issue for parents.  Councilmember Kolb agreed the shelter and playground location is an issue.  

Councilmember Swanson asked about the value of a general use field versus a little league field. Park and Recreation Director Kappelhoff responded the multi-use fields get a lot of use.

Councilmember Bourke suggested moving the playground and shelter to where the tennis court is located.
Mayor Ryan stated the playground needs to be a benefit to the development.

Councilmember Clark stated he wants the location of the playground and shelter addressed.  He also suggested an outdoor handball court be considered. 

Councilmember Bourke suggested moving the tennis court for less light glare on the homes.
Councilmember Swanson asked about the cost of the land and development.  Community Development Director Schafer responded approximately $4.5 million. 

City Manager Arneson stated he would work with staff on refining the park and financing.
Mayor Ryan asked what neighborhood kids play at this park.  Park and Recreation Director Kappelhoff responded Centennial kids would probably play at this park.  Mayor Ryan asked how the parks are scheduled.  Park and Recreation Director Kappelhoff responded the parks are scheduled by groups’ location.

Councilmember Swanson asked if rugby is played in Blaine.  Park and Recreation Director Kappelhoff responded no local league has requested fields for rugby in the City.  

Councilmember Bourke asked if a storage building and concessions stand is planned for the park.  Park and Recreation Director Kappelhoff responded yes, the park has a lot of potential.

Councilmember Swanson asked about losing field one at Aquatore park and the airport field.  Park and Recreation Director Kappelhoff responded Blaine would be down two fields for 2012. 

Councilmember Clark stated the Baseball Association has suggested there is room within the Baseball Complex for another unlit field.  Councilmember Kolb disagreed with this suggestion.  

Mayor Ryan stated at times the ball fields are quiet, but the general fields are busy.

Councilmember Kolb stated she would like to see more development at Happy Acres. 

Mayor Ryan stated the Baseball Complex’s parking is always full.  Councilmember Kolb stated the parking lot is small and people park on the streets.  

Councilmember Clark asked if Happy Acres could be redesigned.  Councilmember Kolb stated it is a large park that is underdeveloped.  

Public Services Manager Therres stated the soil is poor by the hockey rinks and there is a drainage issue on field two.  
Councilmember Swanson asked about a long range plan for parks.  Public Services Manager Therres responded Lexington Park Athletic Facility is the last major complex for Blaine.
Mayor Ryan stated there is open property next to Jim Peterson Park.

Council consensus was to move forward with the Lexington Park Athletic Facility.

Councilmember Clark asked about lighting for all of the fields.  Park and Recreation Director Kappelhoff responded the fields would be too close to housing.

Councilmember Kolb stated lighting could be looked at in the future.
OTHER BUSINESS
Metropolitan Airport Commission (MAC)
City Manager Arneson stated in June 2011, a lease proposal for the ball fields was brought to the Council and the Council suggested combining the agreement with the MAC fire, and sewer and water services for Xylite.  He stated MAC does not want to pay for fire service from Blaine, but agreed to a one year extension.  Mr. Arneson stated a meeting was scheduled for January 3, 2012, with the MAC Committee and NSC to work on an amendment to the Victory Links Golf Course lease agreement that would incorporate the 47 acres (Blaine Soccer Complex and Blaine Youth Soccer).  Mr. Arneson stated he attended a meeting on January 6, 2012, to discuss an agreement on the usage of the fields between NSC and Blaine Youth Soccer.  City Manager Arneson will be meeting with MAC staff on January 17, 2012.  He stated the agreement deadline is April 1, 2012.  

The Council held a discussion about the lease agreement, field usage agreement and the parties involved.
City Manager Arneson stated MAC got an appraisal on the land and MAC wants to retain the property.  

City Survey RFP Results
City Manager Arneson stated the City sent out a Request for Proposals (RFP) to develop and conduct a City residential and business survey.  The City received proposals from eight firms.  City staff reviewed the RFPs and developed a comparison data sheet for the Council’s review.   

Mayor Ryan stated his preference was to use the National Research Center, Colorado, and a mailed survey.

Councilmember Kolb stated a phone survey is the way to go.  

Councilmember Swanson stated a mailed survey may not receive a good response.
Councilmember Clark stated mail surveys still work.

Councilmember Hovland stated he would prefer a mailed survey.  

Councilmember Swanson asked if responses are guaranteed.  City Manager Arneson responded mailed surveys receive more responses.
Councilmember Bourke stated both business and residential surveys should be conducted.  City Manager Arneson responded the City could partner with the Chamber on a business survey.

Councilmember Clark would like the Council to frame (not write) the questions so the survey responses will guide the City for the next two to three years. 

Councilmember Kolb suggested a Council Workshop or retreat be scheduled this spring in order for the Council to discuss the survey and frame questions.   

Councilmember Swanson wants feedback from the people on what they think. 

Discussion took place on how the survey would be conducted and financed.  The Council’s consensus is to go with National Research Center, Colorado for the residential survey.
Councilmember Clark asked why the City should partner with the Chamber on a business survey.  City Manager Arneson responded business surveys are more expensive than residential.  

City Council Retreat

The Council discussed details of the planned retreat that is scheduled for Friday, February 3, 2012, from 5:00-6:30 p.m., social from 7:00-9:00 p.m. at Mr. Arneson’s home and Saturday, February 4, 2012, from 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. at SBM #3. 
Steel Roofs 

City Manager Arneson gave an overview of steel roofs on residential homes in the City of Blaine.  Mr. Arneson stated the City has an ordinance and there are four to five homes in Blaine that have metal interlocking shingles.  Councilmember Clark stated there is a difference between metal interlocking shingles and standing seam roof panels.  City Manager Arneson stated the ordinance does not cover standing seam roof panels on residential homes.
The workshop adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 







Tom Ryan, Mayor

ATTEST:

Jane M. Cross, CMC, City Clerk

Submitted by TimeSaver Off Site Secretarial, Inc.

